
 

 

Cumberland Joint Committee 
 
 
Date: 12 May 2022  
 
Time: 10:00am  
 
Venue: The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Whitehaven, CA28 7SJ 
 
 
 
1. Cumberland Joint Committee Agenda Pack  (Attached) 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Cumberland Joint Committee 

Thursday, 12 May 2022 AT 10:00 

In the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 

Whitehaven, CA28 7SJ 

 

 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutions. 

 

 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests, other 

registrable interests and any interests, relating to any items on the agenda at 

this stage. 

 

 PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To agree that the items of business within Part A of the agenda should be dealt 

with in public and that the items of business within Part B of the agenda should 

be dealt with in private. 

 

 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Chair will move the minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2022 as a 

correct record.  The only part of the minutes that may be discussed is their 

accuracy. 

(Copy minutes herewith). 

3 - 8 

 

AGENDA 
 

Page 1 of 42Page 3

Agenda Item 1



PART A 

To be considered when the Public and Press are present 

 

 

A.1 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

To consider an update on the Implementation Plan and Programme 

Governance. 

(Copy Report herewith) 

9 - 36 

A.2 INTERIM STATUTORY OFFICER APPOINTMENTS 

To consider and agree for recommendation to the Shadow Authority the Interim 

Head of Paid Services and options for the Interim Monitoring Officer and 

Interim Chief Finance Officer posts. 

(Copy Report herewith) 

37 - 

42 

 
PART B 

To be considered when the Public and Press are excluded from the meeting 

 

  

- NIL - 

 

 Members of the Cumberland Joint Committee 

Councillor M Johnson, Allerdale Borough Council 

Councillor A Smith, Allerdale Borough Council 

Councillor N Cockburn, Allerdale Borough Council 

Councillor J Mallinson, Carlisle City Council 

Councillor G Ellis, Carlisle City Council 

Councillor L Brown, Carlisle City Council (Vice Chair) 

Councillor D Moore, Copeland Borough Council 

Councillor M Hawkins, Copeland Borough Council 

Councillor L Jones-Bulman, Copeland Borough Council 

Councillor S Young, Cumbria County Council (Chair) 

Councillor K Little, Cumbria County Council 

Councillor C Tibble, Cumbria County Council 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 42Page 4



Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

 

Cumberland Joint Committee 

Date: Thursday, 14 April 2022  Time: 10:00 

Venue: The Market Hall 

 

Present: Councillor Lisa Brown, Councillor Nicky Cockburn, Councillor Gareth Ellis, Councillor 

Mike  Hawkins, Councillor Mike Johnson, Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman, Councillor Keith Little, 

Councillor John Mallinson, Councillor David Moore, Councillor Alan Smith, Councillor Stewart 

Young 

Officers:     Mr Seekings, Senior Responsible Officer, Allerdale Borough Council 
          Dr Gooding, Town Clerk and Chief Executive, Carlisle City Council 
                    Mr Lambert, Monitoring Officer, Carlisle City Council 
                    Ms Roberts, Executive Director Corporate Customer and Community Services,  
                    Cumbria County Council 
                    Ms Parkinson, Monitoring Officer, Cumbria County Council 
                    Ms Hartley, Monitoring Officer, Copeland Borough Council  
              Ms Liddle, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Carlisle City Council       

 

 

CJC.15/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Tibble (Cumbria County Council), 
Mr Readman (Cumbria County Council) and Ms Pemberton (Copeland Borough Council).  

 

CJC.16/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were submitted. 
 

CJC.17/22 PUBLIC AND PRESS 

RESOLVED - It was agreed that the items in Part A be dealt with in public and the items in 
private be dealt with in Part B. 

 

CJC.18/22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

With reference to minute CJC.14/22 Interim Statutory Officer Recruitment, the Chair noted that 
within the discussion regarding the interview panel members it was stated that other members 
of the Joint Committee would be able to substitute for an appointed member of the interview 

Page 3 of 42Page 5



panel as required.  However, the matter had not been included in the Committee's resolution on 
the item of business.  He proposed that the minutes be amended to include reference to the use 
of substitutes in the Committee's resolution, the Committee indicated its agreement.  
 
RESOLVED 1) That the resolution of minute CJC.14/22 Interim Statutory Officer Recruitment, 
be amended to include reference to the use of substitute members of the Joint Committee for an 
appointed member of the interview panel as required.   
 
2) That, subject to the amendment set out above, the minutes be approved.   

 

CJC.19/22 PROPOSED CODE OF CONDUCT, GUIDANCE AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR 

THE SHADOW AUTHORITY FOR CUMBERLAND 

The Monitoring Officer, Carlisle City Council, presented the proposed Code of Conduct, 
guidance and arrangements for the Shadow Authority for Cumberland. 
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that Article 25 of the Cumbria (Structural Changes Order) 2022 
(SCO) required that the Cumberland Joint Committee must formulate proposals for the Code of 
Conduct to be adopted by the Shadow Authority for Cumberland at its first meeting.  The Code 
of Conduct must include provisions the authority deemed appropriate in respect of the 
registration in its register, and disclosure of, pecuniary interests and other interests.  The 
authority was also required to have in place arrangements under which allegations relating to 
the Code of Conduct may be investigated and arrangements under which decisions on 
allegations could be made and the arrangements must include provision for the appointment of 
at least one independent persons. 
 
The proposed Code of Conduct had been formulated by use of the Local Government 
Association template along with relevant local amendments.  
 
A Member asked whether the reference to promoting equalities, set out in paragraph 2.3 of the 
report, would be restricted to those stipulated in the Equalities Act? 
 
The Monitoring Officer, Carlisle City Council, confirmed that was the case.  
 
A Member proposed that the recommendation set out in paragraph 2.1 of the report, the Joint 
Committee recommends to the Shadow Authority for Cumberland that it adopts from the date of 
its first meeting the Code of Conduct, the Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Matters, the 
Code of Conduct Guidance and Register of Interests Form, as set out in the Report, be 
amended to as follows: 
 
That the Joint Committee recommended to the Shadow Authority for Cumberland that it 
considers at the date of its first meeting the Code of Conduct, the Arrangements for Dealing with 
Standards Matters, the Code of Conduct Guidance and Register of Interests Form, as set out in 
the Report.  
 
The Senior Responsible Officer sought clarification that the Member was proposing to 
recommend that the Shadow Authority consider rather than adopt the Code of Conduct, the 
Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Matters, the Code of Conduct Guidance and Register 
of Interests Form at its first meeting.   
 
The Member confirmed this.  
 
The Monitoring Officer, Carlisle City Council, advised that the SCO required the Joint 

Page 4 of 42Page 6



Committee formulate a Code of Conduct and associated documents to recommend to the 
Shadow Authority for adoption, it was then a matter for the Shadow Authority to determine 
whether to accept that recommendation or to amend the Code.   
 
The Chair indicated he did not accept that position and that the Committee would recommend to 
the Shadow Authority that it consider the Code of Conduct, Guidance and Arrangements.  
 
RESOLVED - That the Joint Committee: 
 
i) recommends to the Shadow Authority for Cumberland that it considers at the date of its first 
meeting the Code of Conduct, the Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Matters, the Code 
of Conduct Guidance and Register of Interests Form, as set out in the Report; 
 
ii) authorised the Monitoring Officer to initiate a recruitment process to enable the Shadow 
Authority to appoint an Independent Person(s) at the earliest opportunity. 

 

CJC.20/22 PROPOSED SHADOW AUTHORITY CONSTITUTION 

The Monitoring Officer, Carlisle City Council, presented a Constitution for adoption by the 
Shadow Authority for Cumberland Council at its first meeting on 17 May 2022. 
 
The Monitoring Officer emphasised that the Proposed Shadow Authority Constitution would 
operate only for the year duration of the Shadow Authority and had been developed based on a 
review of the Constitutions of previous Shadow Authorities.  The report contained the 
requirements placed on the Shadow Authorities in Part 3 of the Cumbria (Structural Changes) 
Order 2022 (SCO) along with a copy of the Proposed Shadow Authority Constitution.   
 
Further to the production of the report, Monitoring Officers had continued to work on the 
document.  Article 15(i) proposed that the Implementation Plan to keep under review and revise 
as necessary be the responsibility of the Shadow Full Authority, however, it was considered a 
matter for the Shadow Authority Executive.  Therefore, it was recommended that Article 15 be 
amended to remove "(i)".  The Shadow Authority had the power to reinstate the item were it 
minded to do so.   
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that the Monitoring Officer Group wished to continue working on 
the document and in the event of any changes being required, that they be dealt with as per 
recommendation 3 detailed in the report.   
 
A Member noted that the Proposed Shadow Authority Constitution did not contain reference to a 
Parental / Maternity Leave Policy, she asked whether the matter had been considered.  
 
The Monitoring Officer responded that it had not.  The Proposed Constitution had been drafted 
to meet the requirements stemming from the SCO.  Local authorities implemented and adhered 
to many policies not all of which were contained in the respective Constitutions as it was 
important that the document remained workable.   
 
A Member moved that the Joint Committee refer the draft constitution to the Cumberland 
Shadow Authority for consideration at its inaugural meeting on 17 May 2022, the proposal was 
seconded. 
 
Discussion ensued on the purpose of the Joint Committee with a number of Members 
expressing the view that it was a function of the Committee to recommend the Proposed 
Constitution to the Shadow Authority for adoption.  Accordingly, a Member moved the 
recommendations as set out in the report.  The proposal was seconded.   

Page 5 of 42Page 7



 
The Chair noted that two motions had been proposed and seconded.  The matter was put to the 
vote and it was: 
 
RESOLVED - That the Joint Committee refers the draft constitution to the Cumberland Shadow 
Authority for consideration at its inaugural meeting on 17 May 2022.  

 

CJC.21/22 CIVIC AND CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Deputy Monitoring Officer), Carlisle City Council 
presented an overview of the work being undertaken in respect of civic and ceremonial matters 
and updates on the timetable for the Consequential Matters Order to implement the 
establishment of Charter Trustees to preserve the Civic and Ceremonial Rights of the existing 
Councils. 
 
The report set out civic and ceremonial matters which were provided for in the Cumbria 
(Structural Changes Order) 2022 (SCO) along with a detailed overview of the matters outwith 
the SCO.  Officers from across each of the Cumbrian Authorities had met to discuss the various 
and the report provided an update on the work undertaken thus far.   
 
A Member welcomed the opportunity to consider the different models set out in the report.  
 
A Member moved the Officer's recommendation, which was seconded and it was: 
 
RESOLVED - That the Joint Committee noted the work being undertaken and timings provided 
by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) in respect of the 
Consequential Matters Order. 

 

CJC.22/22 MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES - IRP RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Monitoring Officer, Copeland Borough Council, presented the recommendations of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) and the proposed Scheme of Members 
Allowances.  The IRP, in developing its recommendations, had considered the level of work and 
duties it was anticipated Members of the Shadow Authority would be required to undertake.   
 
The report recommended that the Joint Committee: 
i) noted the report; 
ii) accepted the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and the Scheme of 
Member Allowances which it had proposed (Appendix 1); 
iii) recommended to the Cumberland Shadow Authority at its inaugural meeting that the 
proposed Scheme be adopted. 
 
A Member welcomed the proposed dependent carer's allowance but noted that, particularly in 
relation to childcare, it was difficult to secure slots of only a couple of hours on an ad hoc 
basis.  In relation to the proposed basic allowances, the Member was of the view that the role of 
the Shadow Authority was to set up the new Cumberland Council which would necessitate a lot 
of work, it was not clear that the IRP had taken that matter into account in the development of its 
recommendations.  
 
The Member moved that the report be noted and referred to the Shadow Authority for its 
consideration.  
 
A Member endorsed the comments in respect of childcare and seconded the proposal.    

Page 6 of 42Page 8



 
RESOLVED - That the Joint Committee: 
 
i) noted the report 
 
ii) refer the proposed Scheme to the Cumberland Shadow Authority for consideration at its 
inaugural meeting. 

 

The Meeting ended at:  10:38 

Page 7 of 42Page 9



 

Page 8 of 42Page 10



 

Version No ……………………………………………………………...                 Date ……………………………………………. 

CUMBERLAND JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
Meeting date: 12 May 2022 
Report of: Kim Rennie, LGR Programme Director  
 
Subject: Implementation Plan  
 
1.0  SUMMARY: 
 
1.1 This report updates Members about the Implementation Plan and 

Programme Governance that has been developed by officers of the County 
Council, the Cumberland Councils and the Westmorland and Furness 
Councils, to ensure an effective transition to the new unitary Councils for 
Cumberland, and Westmorland and Furness on Vesting Day, 1 April 2023. 
This reflects the requirements in The Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 
2022.  

 
 
2.0  RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the updated Implementation Plan (April 2022) attached at Appendix 1 

be noted, pending the establishment of the two Shadow Authorities in May 
2022. 

  
 
3.0  BACKGROUND, INTRODUCTION AND CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
3.1 Members will recall that in July 2021 the Secretary of State announced his 

decision, subject to Parliamentary approval, to implement a two unitary 
pattern of Local Government in Cumbria based on an East-West geography.  
The Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 (SCO) gives effect to that 
decision and came into force on 18 March 2022.   

 
3.2 Under Article 24 of the Order, the Joint Committees must each prepare, 

keep under review, and revise as necessary, an Implementation Plan, 
including any plans and timetables that they consider necessary to secure 
the effective, efficient, and timely transfer of functions, property, rights, and 
liabilities to the successor Councils. 

 
3.3 With the dissolution of the Joint Committees, (the day following that on which 

the Shadow Authorities for each area holds its first meeting), the Shadow 
Authorities then assume responsibility for keeping the Implementation Plan 
that has been prepared under review and revised as necessary. 

 
3.4 At the meeting of this Committee on 30 March 2022 Members received a 

report on Implementation Plan and Programme Governance, made 
comments on the detail of this, including in relation to the importance of task 
and finish groups, and resolved that the Implementation Plan be amended to 
include all of the options considered for the delivery of services, including the 
Fire and Rescue Service, for the two new authorities, and that the 

Item
A.1

Page 9 of 42Page 11



 

Version No ……………………………………………………………...                 Date ………………… …………………. 
 

Implementation Plan be submitted to the Joint Committee at its meeting on 
12 May 2022.   
  

 
4.0 CURRENT POSITION   
 
4.1 Progress has continued to be made in delivering the LGR Programme, and 

the Implementation Plan has subsequently been updated to reflect the 
progress made and in the light of comments made by the Joint Committees.  
The updated Implementation Plan is attached at Appendix 1 and will 
continue to be kept under review. 

 
4.2 Since Members last considered the Implementation Plan progress has 

included: 
 

 The embedding of the programme structure, and associated leadership 
and governance model together with agreed ways of working, developed 
as part of the Reset of arrangements in February 

 Continuation of the three-way Senior Responsible Officer(s) (SROs) 
arrangement with accountability for programme delivery, and 
continuation of the Chief Executive level LGR Programme Board, as the 
Implementation Team, to oversee and direct the work being done 

 The operation of thematic and cross cutting officer working groups, with 
the creation of new groups where appropriate, to provide service and 
technical expertise and deliver projects to support to the process   

 The continued development of the Data-Hub, and analysis of the 
information it holds, providing a coordinated approach to data collection, 
analysis, and provision 

 Use of internal resources has been supplemented by KPMG as the 
Strategic Partner to the Programme, adding capacity and expertise, and 
acting as advisors and critical friends to the programme. Most recently 
this has involved data analysis, support around day one readiness and 
identifying the “must have” deliverables, to ensure the councils can 
operate safely from Vesting Day in a consistent way. They have been 
helping to identifying the interfaces and tracking progress, helping to 
create generic guidance/training for/on the development of Blueprints, 
and providing some quality assurance to work that is being undertaken 
on assets, including how the recommendations as to future locations of 
Headquarters will be determined 

 The further development of the overall Programme Timeline and the 
approach to the Implementation Phase of the Programme 

 The selection process for the Interim Statutory Officers required to be 
designated at the first meetings of the Shadow Authorities 

 On-going work to collate HR data and policies, and engage and consult 
with staff and unions   

 The formal establishment of the Programme Management Team 
incorporating a Programme Management Office to coordinate the 
delivery of the programme, with Programme and Project Management, 
and Support staff formally seconded/transferred to the Programme from 
1 April 2022, and a further recruitment process underway  

Page 10 of 42Page 12



 

Version No ……………………………………………………………...                 Date ………………… …………………. 
 

 The continued operation of the LGR Implementation Reserve in line with 
the agreed Memorandum of Understanding governing the operation of 
this fund 

 On-going work to support the Joint Committees and develop the work 
programmes/forward plans of the Shadow Authorities from May 

 Continued work to evaluate the options for Day 1 delivery of services and 
to develop draft Blueprints for Shadow Authority consideration 

 Representations made to Government on the draft Section 24 Direction 
that is proposed for all Councils/areas in this phase of Local Government 
Re-Organisation 

 The continued delivery of communications plans for staff, Members, and 
key partners/stakeholders. 

 
 
4.3 In terms of the development of draft Blueprints, the advice is now that these 

will be an Executive function of the Shadow Authorities, and it is anticipated 
that when established, Members of Shadow Authorities will want to have the 
benefit of and give early consideration to the work done to date.  Members 
will be able to discuss and steer this through a range of informal and more 
formal mechanisms (e.g., task and finish groups, presentations, Committees 
etc.), to enable further development over the spring/summer, and beyond as 
part of the Strategic Planning process, (integrating the corporate planning 
(Council Plan), financial planning and service planning cycles). 

 
4.4 For each Shadow Authority the draft Blueprint will pull together at a high 

level, the work done on baselining and options appraisal to date, also with 
that done on budget disaggregation/aggregation, (in line with the principles 
highlighted in the last report), to provide a baseline statement as to what 
services, staff and budget is envisaged each Authority is likely to have on 
Vesting Day. In a number of service areas transitional arrangements may be 
required/recommended pending any preferred option being deliverable. The 
focus of draft Blueprints will be on making the transition to the new 
Authorities a safe, legal, and smooth one, whilst paving the way for further 
transformation, and longer-term options development/consideration should 
Authorities so wish. The development of draft Blueprints is further described 
in the updated Implementation Plan attached at Appendix 1. 

 
4.5 In respect of Cumbria Fire and Rescue service the Government’s continued 

intention is that the fire service should be provided on a county basis with 
two potential options to achieve this. The first is for the functions to be 
transferred to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria by Order 
made under section 4A of the Fire and Rescue services Act 2004, should 
the Secretary of State be satisfied that the relevant statutory tests are met. 
The second option is for the Secretary of State to create a new combined 
fire and rescue authority. However, all options remain in scope at this time 
and discussions are on-going with Civil Servants in relation to these to 
enable effective planning in the context of the Structural Changes Order. 
Work as required is being developed through the Cumbria Fire and Rescue 
Service Transition Board. 

 
 
5.0  OPTIONS, INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES (IF ANY) 

Page 11 of 42Page 13



 

Version No ……………………………………………………………...                 Date ………………… …………………. 
 

 
5.1  It is recommended that Members note the updated Implementation Plan at 

Appendix 1, in line with the Structural Changes Order requirement to 
prepare, keep under review and revise this as necessary. 

 
5.2 The Shadow Authorities will hold their first meetings on 17 May, and should 

the Committee so wish any agreed comments can be brought to the 
attention of the Members of the Authority. 

 
 
6.0  IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 Financial and Procurement: 
 
6.1.1  The funding available to deliver the Implementation Plan is through the LGR 

Implementation Reserve. This has been described in detail in a previous 
report. 

 
6.1.2  Any funding required to support transformational change will need to be 

agreed as part of the budget setting processes for the two new Unitary 
Councils. 

 
6.2 Staffing: 
 
6.2.1  There are no direct implications associated with this report. 
 
6.3 Legal: 
 
6.3.1  To comply with the Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 the following 

Articles are relevant that relate to the Implementation Plan.   
  
6.3.3  Article 22 provides that all Councils have an additional function, exercisable 

only in the transitional period beginning on the coming into force of the Order 
and ending on the fourteenth day after the 2022 election day, of preparing 
for and facilitating the economic, effective, efficient, and timely transfer to 
the, of such of its functions, property, rights, and liabilities as relate to the 
new Unitary Councils.  

  
6.3.4  Article 24 further provides that the Joint Committees each prepare, keep 

under review, and revise as necessary, an Implementation Plan which must 
include—  
(a) such plans and timetables as are in the opinion of each Joint Committee 
necessary to secure the effective, efficient, and timely discharge of the 
article 22 functions (referenced above); and  
(b) such budgets and plans as it considers necessary or desirable to 
facilitate the economic, effective, efficient, and timely discharge, on and after 
1st April 2023, of the functions that, before that date, are functions of the 
County Council, the Cumberland councils, or the Westmorland and Furness 
councils.  

  
6.3.5  For the purposes of (a) preparing, reviewing, and revising the 

Implementation Plan, (b) discharging the article 22 functions, and (c) 

Page 12 of 42Page 14



 

Version No ……………………………………………………………...                 Date ………………… …………………. 
 

discharging such other functions as may be conferred on it, each Joint 
Committee must have regard to the information supplied to the Secretary of 
State in support of the proposal for single tier local government in Cumbria.  

 
6.3.6  The report presents an updated Implementation Plan for noting by the Joint 

Committee. This will be kept under review and considered further by the 
Shadow Authorities. 

 
6.3.7  The Terms of Reference reflect the above requirements. 
 
6.4 Information Governance: 
 
6.4.1  There are no direct Information Governance implications associated with this 

report.  
 
 
7.0  HEALTH AND SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
7.1  There are no direct implications associated with this report. 
 
 
8.0  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT: 
 
8.1  There are no direct implications associated with this report. 
 
 
9.0 RISKS: 
 
9.1 There is a legal obligation to prepare, keep under review and revise as 

necessary an Implementation Plan as described at 6.3 above. Not doing so 
would be a contravention of the legal requirements of the SCO. Approval of 
the recommendations of the report will enable legal requirements to be met, 
in mitigation of this risk. 

 
9.2 There is a risk of being unable to deliver the LGR process to meet the 

requirement to ensure that the two new Councils can operate safe and 
legally on day 1. The preparation and on-going review of the Implementation 
Plan, and creation of the Implementation Reserve to provide core funding for 
the Programme, together with the governance arrangements outlined in this 
report mitigate against this risk. 

 
 
10.0  CONCLUSION: 
 
10.1 This report provides details of the requirements of The Cumbria (Structural 

Changes) Order 2022 and advises Members of how Councils are meeting 
the requirements in relation to the Implementation Plan in order to facilitate 
the transition to the respective new single tiers of local government and the 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue service the transfer of the District and County 
Councils functions, property, rights, and liabilities. 

 
 
Report Authors  

Page 13 of 42Page 15



 

Version No ……………………………………………………………...                 Date ………………… …………………. 
 

 
Kim Rennie, LGR Programme Director 
 
  
 
 
APPENDIX 
 

1. The Implementation Plan (April 2022). (Ref:20220222 LGR Programme 
Implementation Plan – April 22 v6.pptx). 

 
 
 

Page 14 of 42Page 16



Delivering Two Unitary
Councils for Cumbria

LGR Implementation Plan
(April 2022)

Page 15 of 42

P
age 17



Vision and Ambition for Cumbria

• We have a once-in-a-generation opportunity to 
shape the county’s public services for the better.

• This implementation plan, which will develop 
overtime, will facilitate the development and 
the creation of two distinct councils focused on 
the specific communities they will serve.

• Vesting Day, on April 1, 2023 is a significant 
milestone and will be the start of the next stage 
of the journey, with the process of 
transformation continuing after this point.

Page 16 of 42

P
age 18



Two New Councils for Cumbria
Our Vision for Cumbria is that in creating the two new Councils we will promote Cumbria with strong 
and fair representation for our communities and businesses. Our services will drive sustainable 
economic growth, enable safe and healthy lives and deliver value for money for everyone. 

Our Ambition as we move through the LGR programme is that we create:
• Two new financially sustainable unitary authorities, that operate 

safely and legally from day one, whilst providing improved access 
to services, a seamless transition for our customers and 
stakeholders, and a great place to work for employees. We will 
ensure that on vesting day services operate to at least the 
standard they did before.

• Foundations to enable the new organisations to further transform 
and improve outcomes for residents, businesses, partners and the 
environment with Vesting Day being a milestone on a 
transformation journey which is likely to take 5-7 years.

• Governance structures that enable the two new councils to raise 
ambitions and become more successful in terms of place, so that 
the economy is transformed, and the opportunities and life 
chances of all residents are significantly improved.

• Ways of working that deliver local, responsive, accessible, high 
quality, services efficiently and in collaboration with our partners.

• Governance structures that realise the opportunities of creating 
two unitary authorities to reflect the distinctiveness of place, but 
also facilitate operating on a Cumbria wide basis when this will 
bring investment to the area or mean they function more 
effectively.

• Councils who share decisions and power with the communities of 
Cumbria.

• Councils who ensure staff are fully supported through the process 
and are able to see and benefit from the opportunities LGR 
presents.

• Councils who elect and induct Members to lead the new unitary 
authorities and provide community leadership.

Page 17 of 42

P
age 19



Our Implementation Approach – Values 
To achieve this, we have adopted a set of values to guide our work together, and a set of design 
principles to guide the transition of services to the two new Councils.  

Underpinning this is a One team – One Programme – Two Plans approach.

Our Core Values are:
• Open and transparent

• Collaborative

• Supportive and 
strength based

• Put organisational 
boundaries aside 

• Committed

….and we are committed to:

• Sharing resources (for the programme and to support service needs in the transition period

• Using principles of co-design and production

• Being evidenced based and giving due consideration to professional expertise

• Once and together – a single hub model

• Remaining conscious of what is best for the communities of Cumbria, and the different needs and 
opportunities in Cumberland and Westmorland in Furness

• Acting and speaking collectively for the programme, whist respecting the sovereignty of authorities

Page 18 of 42

P
age 20



Our Implementation Approach – Design Principles

• Creating Strong and Accountable Leadership 
– at local and strategic level through effective 
member-led governance.

• Outcome-focused – a focus on delivering better 
outcomes and realising the benefits of local 
government reform.

• Customer and community-focused – ensuring 
that the needs and aspirations of customers and 
local communities are at the centre of the design 
of new structures.

• Creating Sustainable Communities – putting 
the creation and support of sustainable 
communities and sustainable development at the 
core –recognising the diversity of local 
communities, and the opportunities and 
challenges of the area’s rurality and unique 
geographies and landscapes.

• Place-focused – building on place-based 
approaches, local decision-making, co-production 
and community-based delivery mode.

• Promoting Public Health approaches – putting 
public health approaches at the centre of new 
models focusing on prevention and early 
intervention.

• Climate and Environment-focused – creating 
organisations and developing models of delivery 
with environmental sustainability, protecting and 
improving biodiversity, achieving net zero and the 
impacts of climate change at their core.

• Promoting Inclusive Economy approaches –
focusing on both local and strategic approaches 
to build strong and inclusive economies, realising 
the benefits of collaboration to unlock inclusive 
economic growth.

• Collaborative and Strength-based – building 
on collaborative and strength-based approaches 
with individuals and families, with communities, 
and with local and strategic partners. Do with not 
do to.

• Evidence-based – informing decisions through a 
good understanding of the needs and aspirations 
of communities, and of best practice.

• Modern, Innovative and Digitally-enabled –
unlocking innovation to modernise public 
services which are agile and adaptable. Ensuring 
digitally-enabled models fit for the 21st century.

• Financial sustainability and Value for Money 
– providing the best value for money through 
delivery of efficient and effective services and 
building long-term financially sustainable 
organisations.

• Creating positive organisational cultures –
creating new organisations with cultures that 
promote positivity, creativity, flexibility, the 
building of positive relationships and emphasising 
the importance of being learning organisation

• Valuing the Workforce – valuing the skills, 
knowledge, capabilities and commitment of our 
greatest asset.

We have agreed to design our new Councils using the following Organisational Design Principles:

Page 19 of 42

P
age 21



Timeline and Phasing

• The high level Programme timeline to deliver the unitary Councils of Cumberland and Westmorland 
and Furness is set out on the following slide.

• A Programme has been developed in a series of phases that will enable the two Councils to deliver 
improvements from day one (vesting day – the 1 April 2023), including in relation to ease of 
customer access.  The Programme will ensure a smooth transition to the new arrangements,  
operation in a safe and legal fashion, and the building blocks for further transformation and delivery 
of benefits for local communities.

Page 20 of 42

P
age 22



LGR Programme -Timeline and Phasing

Page 21 of 42

P
age 23



Design Phase

• We have developed a design phase for the two new Councils and this involves a series of stages 
outlined on the following slide.

• At the time of writing, this phase of the Programme, involving developing officer recommendations 
for Shadow Authority consideration, is nearing completion.  The work that has been done in this 
phase is being collated and assessed and will inform the development of draft Blueprints, describing 
the services, staff and budget each Council will have on vesting day.

• The development of  these will be iterative as the detail will be developed through discussion with 
Members and incoming leadership teams and  as part of the strategic planning process. 

Page 22 of 42

P
age 24



Design Phase

Stage 1: Scope of Themes, 
Introduction to services

November December January February March April May

Stage 2: Service 
Profile/Baselining, SWOT, 

Options Identification

Stage 3: Options Appraisal 
Review

Stage 4: Draft 
Blueprints 
Developed

Stage 2-4: Day 1 Requirements and Interdependencies Identified

Page 23 of 42

P
age 25



Design Phase – Design Options, Day 1 
Requirements and Initial Blueprints
• Over the last few months the process of considering the high level design options for services has 

followed the approach shown on the next slide.

• The starting point is to disaggregate, aggregate and integrate services into two separate Councils 
unless there is a compelling reason not to do so, to deliver the requirements of legislation.  

• We continue to consider all options, evaluating these to arrive at a preferred option for each service 
on Day 1 to recommend to Members.  

• Officer recommendations are being brought together in the draft Blueprints for how services in the 
new Councils will operate seamlessly from vesting day, so that they can be considered by the 
Members of Shadow Authorities once established.

• The design phase has also involved the identification of those critical elements without which 
services will not be able to function effectively on vesting day, (“Day 1 Requirements”), regardless of 
the design of the service. 

Page 24 of 42

P
age 26



Design Options

In some service areas a hybrid of options may be appropriate, and transitional arrangements may be recommended for day 1

Page 25 of 42

P
age 27



Democratic and Programme Governance 
• Democratic and programme governance arrangements are in place to oversee the transition to the 

two new Councils on 1 April 2023, and to ensure that they can operate safely and legally from day 1.   

• The democratic governance structure involves the Joint Committees which had to be established no 
later than 14 days after the Structural Changes Order came into force, and which are stood down 
following the first meeting of Shadow Authorities on 17 May 2022.   

• The Joint Committees with decision making powers (one for Cumberland and one for Westmorland 
and Furness) are/were charged with managing the transition to the two new Shadow Authorities, to 
be established in May 2022.  

• Two Shadow Executives are to be appointed, and Interim Heads of Paid Service, Chief Finance and 
Monitoring Officers designated, within 14 days of the elections on 5 May 2022.  Permanent Heads of 
Paid Service, Chief Finance Officers and Monitoring Officers are required to be appointed by 
31.12.22.  The two Shadow Authorities gain full powers on vesting day, 1.4.23. 

• The next two slides describe the democratic  governance structure, the first up to May 2022, the 
second to 1.4.23.

Page 26 of 42

P
age 28



Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Other committees as required

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Other committees as required

Democratic Governance to May 2022

Cumbria Leaders Oversight Forum (CLOF) For informal liaison 

Member task and finish groups
As required– formed by the Shadow Executive and report back recommendations

Westmorland and Furness 
Joint Committee

Westmorland and Furness 
Shadow Authority / Shadow Executive

Member task and finish groups
As required – formed by the Shadow Executive and report back recommendations

Cumberland 
Shadow Authority / Shadow Executive

Cumberland Joint 
Committee

CLOF Reconstituted

March 
2022

May 
2022

Structural change order (SCO) Elections/Day Zero

Page 27 of 42

P
age 29



Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Other committees as required

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Other committees as required

Member task and finish groups
As required – formed by the Shadow Executive and report back recommendations 

Westmorland and Furness 
Shadow Authority / Shadow Executive

Member task and finish groups
As required – formed by the Shadow Executive and report back recommendations 

Cumberland 
Shadow Authority / Shadow Executive

CLOF Reconstituted

Democratic Governance to April 2023

Westmorland and Furness 
Unitary Council

Cumberland
Unitary Council

April 
2023

Day 1

Page 28 of 42

P
age 30



Programme Governance and Structure cont.
• In terms of officer level programme governance, the work to move to the two new Councils is 

currently organised in a series of themes, with representation from all Councils, complemented by 
individual pieces of cross cutting work, for example in relation to economy and devolution.  There is 
also an aligned piece of change work in relation to the options for the future of the Cumbria Fire and 
Rescue Service.

• A series of thematic officer boards have been established, involving senior representatives of the 
County Council, and from the Cumberland and Westmorland and Furness Councils, together with 
subject matter experts to oversee the work involved in setting up the new councils.  There are six 
boards currently, with a series of workstreams/work packages in each. The number and focus of the 
boards is reviewed periodically to ensure they remain fit for purpose. 

• LGR Programme as a whole is overseen by an LGR Programme Board at the most senior level of 
representation from sovereign councils.  The arrangements are shown diagrammatically on the next 
two slides.

Page 29 of 42

P
age 31



Programme Structure

Page 30 of 42

P
age 32



Programme Governance

Page 31 of 42

P
age 33



Implementation Phase

• The next phase of the programme to be embarked upon is the Implementation Phase.

• The slide that follows describes the high level time line for this phase of the LGR programme. 

• As described in preceding slides, Day 1 Readiness Planning involves identifying the must haves for 
day one, what achieving these relies on (interdependencies), and the order in which these need to 
be addressed.  Detailed critical paths are also in place/under development for different 
workstreams/work-packages as part of Day 1 planning.  This will enable more detailed reporting on 
the Programme over the coming months.

• In the design phase the draft Blueprints that are being developed (April to May), will contain the 
details of the resources available to each service based on 2022/23 budgets.  Work over May/June, 
to look at budget disaggregation/aggregation, including savings proposals, will result in costed 
Blueprints, for consideration of Shadow Authorities for taking into the Strategic and Service Planning 
processes over the summer/early autumn period.

Page 32 of 42

P
age 34



May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2022 2023

Day 1 Readiness

Blueprint / Service 
Planning

Corporate plans / 
policies

Organisational 
structure

Strategic Planning 
(other)

Implementation Phase – High Level Timeline

Day 1 plans for Cumberland, and Westmorland and Furness refined and delivered (two plans with some 
joint and some specific requirements)

Draft blueprints considered, 
refined, and adopted by Shadow 

Authorities

Development of Council Plan and required Day 1 policies and plans, in tandem with budget process

Interim 
statutory 
officers 

designated

See next slide

Discussion of draft blueprints and refinement of service plans 
through budget process

Recruitment of Chief Executives/ 
Senior structure options 

developed

Consultation and filling of structures to meet statutory 
requirements and operational needs

Page 33 of 42

P
age 35



Blueprints, service plans and strategic financial planning

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Initial
version of
blueprints Updated

with
2022/23
budget

disaggregation

Costed
Blueprints
reported to
Programme 

Board via
Theme
Boards

Costed
Blueprints

Reported to 
shadow

executives

Blueprints include
“Day 1” safe & legal

Refinement period to accommodate 
wider disaggregation decisions, 

political priorities & policy decisions

Blueprints evolve into
service plans with

performance data and
standards and organisational

design focus

Member
Task & Finish
groups set-up

Strategic financial planning process
(Stages 1-3). Will involve Overview & Scrutiny

Bringing together
overall budgets,

affordability and 
updated service plans

Detailed analysis/completion of 
service plans and MTFP aligned to 

transition &
Day 1 planning.

Statutory consultation on 2023/24 
budget. Government settlement etc

Budget
Sign-off

Ch
an

ge
 fr

ee
ze

Cu
t-

ov
er

 to
 n

ew
un

ita
rie

s

BLUEPRINT FOCUS SERVICE PLAN FOCUS

Strategic financial planning stages

1 2 3 4

*

* Continues into Stage 4 of
the strategic planning process

CONSULTATION ON BUDGET / 
SAVINGS/ COUNCIL PLAN

FINALISE COUNCIL PLAN/ 
MTFP etc

Page 34 of 42

P
age 36



Next steps
• The next steps in the programme will be to refine Day 1 plans, finalise the officer recommendations 

on options for Day 1 operation, and  the development of draft Blueprints for Shadow Authority 
consideration.

• Preparations for operation of Shadow Authorities (Day 0 work)  and vesting day (Day 1 work) 
including laying the foundations for future transformation will continue. 

• The Implementation Plan will be kept under review, and progress reported to the new Shadow 
Authorities.

• The One Programme  approach will continue – with two sets of plans developing overtime.

Page 35 of 42

P
age 37



 

Page 36 of 42Page 38



 
CUMBERLAND JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
Meeting date: 12 May 2022 
 
Report of: LGR Technical Lead, OD&HR Workstream 
 
Subject: Interim Statutory Officer Appointments 
 
1.0 SUMMARY: 
 

1.1 The Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 requires that at its first 
meeting, the shadow authority for Cumberland must designate on an 
interim basis an officer to be responsible for performing the duties of the 
following statutory roles:  

 

• Head of Paid Service 

• Monitoring Officer 

• Chief Finance Officer 
 
1.2 At its meeting on 30th March 2022 the Cumberland Joint Committee agreed the 

process and principles for the appointments process to the designation of these 
roles, in order that recommendations could be made to the Shadow Authority.  
This report outlines the process that has been undertaken and the 
recommendations  from the Joint Committee panel members of the Cumberland 
Joint Committee for those interim statutory roles. 

. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the Joint Committee agrees the officer named below, to be 
recommended to the Shadow Authority, for appointment. 
 

• Interim Head of Paid Service – Andrew Seekings, Chief Executive 
Allerdale Borough Council 

• Interim Monitoring Officer – to be confirmed 

• Interim Chief Finance Officer – to be confirmed 
 
2.2 That the Joint Committee considers whether to recommend an 

honorarium payment to the Shadow Authority as payable to those 
holding the designations of Interim Monitoring Officer and Interim Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 
2.3 That, if agreed, the Joint Committee delegates the decision to the Chief 

Executive, Allerdale Borough Council on the amount payable for the 
honorarium payment, which would be referred to the Shadow Authority 
for determination; OR 

 
2.4 If the Joint Committee is not minded to recommend an honorarium 

payment it is recommended that the Joint Committee refer the said 
decision to the Shadow Authority for it to determine the matter.  

 

Item
A.2

Page 37 of 42Page 39



 
3.0 BACKGROUND, INTRODUCTION AND CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
3.1 On 30th March the Cumberland Joint Committee received a report from the 

LGR Technical Lead of the OD&HR Workstream on the Interim Statutory 
Officer Recruitment.  It was resolved that the Joint Committee: 

 
i) Agreed the selection process, as outlined in paragraphs 3.5 – 3.8 of the 

report;  
 
ii) Agreed that the following members of the Joint Committee be nominated 

to act as interview panel members (with other members of the Joint 
Committee being able to substitute the representative panel member 
from their Council if required).  In the case of a tied vote, the person 
presiding at the meeting (whether or not the Chair of the Committee) will 
have the casting vote: 

Councillor M Johnson, Allerdale Borough Council 
Councillor J Mallinson, Carlisle City Council 
Councillor D Moore, Copeland Borough Council 
Councillor C Tibble, Cumbria County Council 
 

iii) That Option 2 – to widen the field of selection, so that the opportunities 
are open to all officers of the Council who have the required experience, 
skills and qualifications, be agreed as the preferred field of selection for 
the designated roles; 

 
iv) That the principles outlined in paragraphs 3.14 – 3.17 be agreed; 

 
v) That the draft job descriptions for the roles of Interim Head of Paid 

Service, as amended and circulated separately, Interim Monitoring 
Officer and Interim Chief Finance Officer as attached to the report be 
agreed. 

 
3.2 Following the meeting, the Interim Statutory roles were advertised, with 
expressions of interest invited from the agreed field of selection.  Three applications 
were received for the Head of Paid Service role and no expressions of interest 
were received for either the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance officer roles.  
Interviews for the role of Interim Head of Paid Service took place on 8th April 2022.   
 
3.3 The panel agreed a chair and were supported by Sharon Senior from NW 
Employers and Nicola Houwayek, LGR Technical Lead for the OD&HR 
Workstream.  Candidates were asked to present an agreed presentation and a set 
of standard interview questions were agreed and asked by the panel members. 
 
3.4 Following the interviews, the panel agreed that the following candidate 
should be recommended to the Joint Committee  
 

• Interim Head of Paid Service – Andrew Seekings, Chief Executive Allerdale 
Borough Council 

 
3.5 No expressions of interest were received for the Interim Statutory roles for 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer and, at the time of writing this report, it 

Page 38 of 42Page 40



is not possible to confirm any candidates for these roles to recommend to the Joint 
Committee.  A verbal update will be provided at the meeting. 
 
3.6 The interview panel of the Cumberland Joint Committee has made a 
recommendation to the Cumberland Joint Committee to offer an honorarium as part 
of re-advertising the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer roles.  This is a 
change to the principles for appointment agreed at the Joint Committee meeting of 
30 March, where members determined that no additional allowance be paid for 
undertaking these roles. 
 
4.0 OPTIONS, INCLUDING ALTERNATIVES (IF ANY) 
 
4.1 The Joint Committee could decide not to refer the recommended candidates 

to the Shadow Authority.  This is not advised as there would be no 
candidates available for selection for appointment by the Shadow Authority.  

 
4.2 The Joint Committee could recommend an alternative candidate for 

selection to the Shadow Authority.  This is not advised as there would be 
human resources implications and it would not be in line with the process 
adopted for selection.  

 
4.3 The Joint Committee could decide that the honorarium payment should not 

be recommended to the Shadow Authority as payable for the posts of 
Interim Monitoring Officer and Interim Chief Finance Officer. This is not 
advised due to the human resources implications of doing so.  

 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 Financial: 
 
5.1.1 The financial implications for the interim roles have been assumed as zero 

on the basis that there was to be no allowance payable for the interim roles 
and any backfilling required to enable the interim officers to take on the role 
will be covered by the sovereign councils as part of the duty to cooperate 
included in the SCO. Subsequently there has been a request that backfilling 
costs and, if agreed, an honorarium payment for the interim officers be 
funded from the LGR Implementation reserve. This would require a virement 
from the LGR reserve contingency allocation to the Shadow authority costs 
allocation and this would be a decision of the LGR Programme Board. 

 
5.2 Staffing: 
 
5.2.1 As the designated responsibilities of these roles are in addition to those of 

the nominated candidates’ substantive positions, arrangements will be made 
to ensure that the responsibilities of both roles can be fulfilled through 
delegation and backfill as required within the relevant sovereign council. 

 
5.3 Legal: 
 
5.3.1 Article 9 of the Cumbria (Structural Changes) Order 2022 requires that at its 

first meeting the shadow authority for Cumberland must designate on an 
interim basis an officer of the County Council or one of the Cumberland 

Page 39 of 42Page 41



councils to be responsible for performing, in relation to the shadow authority, 
various statutory duties of the Head of the Paid Service, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Chief Finance Officer (s151). 

5.3.2 To enable the Shadow Authority to comply with its statutory obligation, the 
Councils set up the Joint Committee and included within its terms of 
reference (paragraph 7) the responsibility “[t]o agree and undertake the 
recruitment process for the selection of the posts of Interim Head of Paid 
Service, Interim Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) and Interim 
Monitoring Officer for the Shadow Authority and recommend to the Shadow 
Authority at its inaugural meeting nominations for the three interim statutory 
Officers.” 

 
5.3.3 In turn, the Joint Committee established a sub-panel to act as the interview 

panel (CJC.14/22). 
 
5.3.4 As detailed in the report, there weren’t any applications resulting from the 

first advertisement for the interim posts of Monitoring Officer or Chief 
Finance Officer.  There was no opportunity or time to revert to the Joint 
Committee and still enable the committee to comply with its terms of 
reference requirement to provide the Shadow Authority with 
recommendations for the interim appointments therefore, on advice and 
subject to ratification by the Joint Committee, the sub-panel agreed to the 
posts being re-advertised with an honorarium.  The Chair of the Joint 
Committee was subsequently notified of the sub-panel’s action including that 
the principle was subject to ratification by the Joint Committee.  It was also 
acknowledged that the Joint Committee may choose not to ratify the action 
and it was suggested that in this scenario the committee would be able to 
refer the decision to the Shadow Authority for final determination. 

 
5.3.5 At the time of writing it is unknown whether there will be any applications 

resulting from the second advertisement but it must be made clear to all 
persons expressing an interest that the honorarium is subject to the approval 
of the Joint Committee (or the Shadow Authority) so as to ensure that they 
are fully informed. 

 
5.4 Information Governance: 
 
5.4.1  There are no information governance issues. 
 
6.0 HEALTH AND SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
6.1 There are no direct health and sustainability implications from this report. 
 
6.2 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT: 
 
6.3 There are no direct equality and diversity impacts from this report. 
 
7.0 RISKS: 
 
7.1 If a candidate is not recommended to the Shadow Authority for appointment, 

then there is a risk that the requirements of the Structural Change Order are 
not met.   

 

Page 40 of 42Page 42



8.0 CONCLUSION: 
 
8.1  That members consider the recommendations outlined in paragraph 2.1 – 

2.3. 
 
Report Authors: 
 
Nicola Houwayek – LGR Technical Lead, OD&HR Workstream 
 
Link to related papers: 
 
Cumberland Area Joint Committee papers 30th March 2022 
 

• Interim Statutory Appointments 

• Minutes  
 

Page 41 of 42Page 43

https://carlisle.cmis.uk.com/Meetings/tabid/73/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/410/Meeting/5166/Committee/885/Default.aspx


 

Page 42 of 42Page 44


	Agenda
	1 Cumberland Joint Committee Agenda Pack
	Agenda Contents
	MINUTES\ OF\ PREVIOUS\ MEETING
	A.1 IMPLEMENTATION\ PLAN
	ADP1F4B.tmp
	Delivering Two Unitary�Councils for Cumbria��LGR Implementation Plan�(April 2022)
	Vision and Ambition for Cumbria
	Two New Councils for Cumbria
	Our Implementation Approach – Values 
	Our Implementation Approach – Design Principles
	Timeline and Phasing
	LGR Programme -Timeline and Phasing
	Design Phase
	Design Phase
	Design Phase – Design Options, Day 1 Requirements and Initial Blueprints
	Slide Number 11
	Democratic and Programme Governance 
	Democratic Governance to May 2022
	Democratic Governance to April 2023
	Programme Governance and Structure cont.
	Programme Structure
	Programme Governance
	Implementation Phase
	Implementation Phase – High Level Timeline
	Blueprints, service plans and strategic financial planning
	Next steps


	A.2 INTERIM\ STATUTORY\ OFFICER\ APPOINTMENTS


